
 City of Ridgecrest           Kern County           Inyo County          San Bernardino County        Indian Wells Valley Water District 
 

INDIAN WELLS VALLEY 

GROUNDWATER AUTHORITY 
Ridgecrest City Hall         100 W California Ave.,  Ridgecrest, CA 93555      760-499-5002 

 
 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
A G E N D A 

Wednesday, June 9, 2021 
Closed Session 10:00 a.m. 

Open Session: No earlier than 11:00 a.m.  
 

NOTICE:   In accordance with the evolving public health declarations, we are temporarily limiting 
public attendance to virtual alternatives only.  Please see the Public Comment Notice below for detailed 
instructions on submitting public comment as well as websites for livestream broadcasting. Telephonic 
participation by the majority of Board Members and staff is expected. 

In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, if you are a disabled person and you need a 
disability-related modification or accommodation to participate in this meeting, please contact April 
Keigwin at (805) 764-5452.  Requests must be made as early as possible and at least one full business day 
before the start of the meeting. Documents and material relating to an open session agenda items that are 
provided to the IWVGA Board of Directors prior to a regular meeting will be available for public 
inspection and copying at Ridgecrest City Hall, 100 W California Ave, Ridgecrest, CA 93555, or online at 
https://iwvga.org/. 

Statements from the Public 
The public will be allowed to address the Board during Public Comments about subjects within the 
jurisdiction of the IWVGA Board and that are NOT on the agenda. No action may be taken on off-agenda 
items unless authorized by law. Questions posed to the Board may be answered after the meeting or at 
future meeting. Dialog or extended discussion between the public and the Board or staff will be limited in 
accordance with the Brown Act. All Public Comment portions of the meeting shall be limited to three (3) 
minutes per speaker.  Each person is limited to one comment during Public Comments.  
 
 

1. CALL TO ORDER 
 

2. PUBLIC COMMENT ON CLOSED SESSION 
  

3. CLOSED SESSION 
• CONFERENCE WITH REAL PROPERTY NEGOTIATIONS –  

(Government Code Section 54956.8)  -  Property: State Water Project Importation; 
Agency Negotiator: Capitol Core Group; Negotiating Parties: Various; Under 
Negotiation: Price and terms of payment. 
 

• CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL  - ANTICIPATED LITIGATION 
(Government Code Section 54956.9(b)) -  Number of cases: (2) 
 

• CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL – EXISTING LITIGATION 
(Government Code Section 54956.9): IWVGA v. Frank Bellino (BCV-21-100415) 
 

https://iwvga.org/


2 | P a g e  
IWVGA Board of Directors 
Meeting of June 9, 2021 

• CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL – EXISTING LITIGATION 
(Government Code Section 54956.9(d)(1)  -  Name of case: Searles Valley Minerals Inc 
v. Indian Wells Valley Groundwater Authority, et. al. 
 

• CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL- EXISTING LITIGATION 
(Government Code Section 54956.9(d)(1)  -  Name of case: Mojave Pistachios, LLC, a 
California limited liability company, et.al. v. Indian Wells Valley Groundwater 
Authority, a California Joint Powers Authority, et. al. 

 
4. OPEN SESSION – No earlier than 11:00 a.m. 

a. Report on Closed Session 
b. Pledge of Allegiance 
c. Roll Call 

 
5. BOARD TO RECEIVE AND FILE PUBLIC CAPITOL CORE GROUP REPORT 

DISCUSSING IMPORT WATER PURCHASE NEGOTIATIONS 
 

6. PUBLIC HEARING AND POSSIBLE ORDER ON MOJAVE PISTACHIOS (AND THE 
NUGENT FAMILY TRUST) FOR FAILURE TO PROPERLY REPORT AND PAY 
REPLENSHMENT FEES 
 

7. CONTINUANCE OF PUBLIC HEARING FOR SEARLES VALLEY MINERALS FOR 
FAILURE TO PROPERLY REPORT AND PAY REPLENISHMENT FEES (Does not 
include domestic water service provided through Searles Domestic Water) 

 
RECESS: The Board may call for a recess before resuming the meeting. 

 
8. CONSENT AGENDA  

a. Approve Minutes of Board Meeting May 12, 2021 
b. Approve Expenditures 

*To view itemized invoices please visit https://iwvga.org/iwvga-meetings 
i. $63,435.63 – Stetson Engineers – (Replenishment Fee) 

ii. $16,898.75 – Regional Government Services – (Extraction Fee / Replenishment 
Fee) 

iii. $15,962.50 – Capitol Core Group – (Replenishment Fee) 
iv. $750.00 – WaterWise Consulting – (Prop. 1 Grant – SDAC) 

 
9. WATER RESOURCES MANAGER REPORT  

a. Proposition 1 Grant Status Update 
b. Proposition 68 Grant Status Update 
c. Recycled Water Program Update 
d. Navy/COSO Royalty Fund 2021 Project(s) 
e. GSP Planned Projects – Project No. 4 Shallow Well Impact Mitigation Program Update 
f. GSP Planned Projects – Project No. 1 Surface Percolation Replenishment Update 

 
10. GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT 

a. Monthly Financial Report 
b. Report on IWVGA’s Water Marketer (Capitol Core Group) 
c. Severely Disadvantaged Communities (SDAC) Programs Update 
d. Delinquent Accounts 

 



3 | P a g e  
IWVGA Board of Directors 
Meeting of June 9, 2021 

11. PUBLIC COMMENTS 
This time is reserved for the public to address the Board about matters NOT on the agenda. No 
action will be taken on non-agenda items unless authorized by law. Comments are limited to three 
minutes per person. 
 

12. CLOSING COMMENTS 
This time is reserved for comments by Board members and/or staff and to identify matters for future 
Board business. 
 

13. DATE OF NEXT MEETING – JULY 14, 2021 
 

14. ADJOURN  

PUBLIC COMMENT NOTICE 

On March 17, 2020, Governor Newsom issued Executive Order N-29-20, relating to the convening of 
public meetings in light of the COVID-19 pandemic. At this time, the Indian Wells Valley Groundwater 
Authority is continuing to hold board meetings in order to conduct essential business. However, as 
suggested by the Center for Disease Control and set forth in the Executive Order, we are temporarily 
limiting public attendance through the following virtual alternatives: 

• Watch meetings on-line:   
All of our meetings are streamed live at https://ridgecrest-ca.gov/369/Watch (4 second streaming 
delay) or on YouTube at https://www.youtube.com/cityofridgecrest/live (22 second streaming delay) 
and are also available for playback after the meeting.  

 
• Call in for public comments:  

If you wish to make verbal comment, please call (760) 499-5010. This phone line will allow only one 
caller at a time, so if the line is busy, please continue to dial. We will be allowing a 20-30 second 
pause between callers to give time for media delays and callers to dial in. Due to media delays, please 
mute your streaming device while making public comment. If you wish to comment on multiple items, 
you will need to call in as each item is presented.  
*Please Note – This process will be a learning curve for all, please be patient.  

 
• Submit written comments:  

We encourage submittal of written comments supporting, opposing, or otherwise commenting on an 
agenda item, for distribution to the Board prior to the meeting. Send emails to akeigwin@rgs.ca.gov 
written correspondence may be sent to April Keigwin, Clerk of the Board, 100 W. California Ave., 
Ridgecrest, CA 93555. Please specify to which agenda item your comment relates.  
 

• Large Groups: 
If you are part of a large group that would like to comment on an agenda item, please consider 
commenting in writing. This will be as impactful to the Board as having a large group in attendance. 

https://ridgecrest-ca.gov/369/Watch
https://www.youtube.com/cityofridgecrest/live




1 | P a g e  
IWVGA Board of Directors ‐ Meeting on May 12, 2021 
 
  

 

INDIAN WELLS VALLEY 
GROUNDWATER AUTHORITY 

City of Ridgecrest, Indian Wells Valley Water District, Inyo County, Kern County, San Bernardino County 
 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
MEETING MINUTES 

Wednesday, May 12, 2021; 10:00 a.m. 
 

 
IWVGA Members Present: 

       Chairman Scott Hayman, City of Ridgecrest Carol Thomas-Keefer, IWVGA General Manager 
                       Phillip Peters, Kern County                 Keith Lemieux, Legal Counsel 

Stan Rajtora, IWVWD Steve Johnson, Stetson Engineers 
 John Vallejo, Inyo County Commander Peter Benson, US Navy, DoD Liaison 

        Tim Itnyre, San Bernardino County April Keigwin, Clerk of the Board 
  Thomas Bickauskas, Bureau of Land Management  

 
Attending via teleconference is Tim Itnyre, John Vallejo, Carol Thomas-Keefer, Steve Johnson, Commander Peter 

Benson, and Thomas Bickauskas. 
 

Meeting recording and public comment letters submitted are made available at: 
https://iwvga.org/iwvga-meetings/ 

1. CALL TO ORDER: 
The meeting is called to order by Chairman Hayman at 10:06 a.m. 

 
2. PUBLIC COMMENT ON CLOSED SESSION: 

None.  
 

Chairman Hayman calls the meeting into Closed Session at 10:06 a.m. 
 
3. CLOSED SESSION: 

 
• CONFERENCE WITH REAL PROPERTY NEGOTIATIONS –  

(Government Code Section 54956.8)  -  Property: State Water Project Importation; Agency 
Negotiator: Capitol Core Group; Negotiating Parties: Various; Under Negotiation: Price and terms 
of payment. 
 

• CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL  - ANTICIPATED LITIGATION (Government 
Code Section 54956.9(b)) -  Number of cases: (2) 

 
• CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL – EXISTING LITIGATION 

(Government Code Section 54956.9): IWVGA v. Frank Bellino (BCV-21-100415) 
 
• CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL – EXISTING LITIGATION  

(Government Code Section 54956.9(d)(1))  -  Name of case: Searles Valley Minerals Inc. v. Indian 
Wells Valley Groundwater Authority, et. al. 

 
• CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL- EXISTING LITIGATION 

(Government Code Section 54956.9(d)(1))  -  Name of case: Mojave Pistachios, LLC, a California 
limited liability company, et.al. v. Indian Wells Valley Groundwater Authority, a California Joint 
Powers Authority, et. al.  

 

        
              

               
              

   
 

        
            

                
              
     

 

        
                

                 
      p    p    

https://iwvga.org/iwvga-meetings/


2 | P a g e  
IWVGA Board of Directors ‐ Meeting on May 12, 2021 
 
  

 
Closed Session adjourned at 11:08 a.m. 
 

4. OPEN SESSION: 
 Meeting reconvenes into Open Session at 11:12 a.m. 

a. Report on Closed Session: 
Counsel Lemieux reports no action was taken that would require disclosure under the Brown Act.  

b. The Pledge of Allegiance is led by Chairman Hayman 
c. April Keigwin calls the following roll call: 

 
Chairman Hayman            Present 
Vice Chair Rajtora         Present 
Director Itnyre                Present  
Director Peters                   Present 
Director Vallejo                Present 

 
5. PUBLIC COMMENT: 

The Board hears public comment from Don Decker and Judie Decker. 
 

6. CONSENT AGENDA: 
a. Approve Minutes of Board Meeting April 14, 2021 
b. Approve Minutes of Special Board Meeting May 6, 2021 
c. Approve Expenditures 

*To view itemized invoices please visit https://iwvga.org/iwvga-meetings 
i. $17,768.75 – Regional Government Services – (Extraction Fee / Replenishment Fee) 

ii. $11,787.50 – Capitol Core Group – (Replenishment Fee) 
iii. $5,350.00 – WaterWise Consulting – (Prop. 1 Grant – SDAC) 
iv. $22,893.07 – California Rural Water Association (Prop. 1 – SDAC) 

 
Motion made by Phillip Peters and seconded by Stan Rajtora to approve Minutes of Board Meeting 
April 14, 2021, Minutes of Special Board Meeting May 6, 2021, and the following expenditures in the 
amount of $17,768.75 to Regional Government Services, $11,787.50 to Capitol Core Group, $5,350.00 
to WaterWise Consulting, and $22,893.07 to California Rural Water Association. 
Motion carries by the following roll call vote:  
 

Chairman Hayman           Aye 
Vice Chair Rajtora        Aye 
Director Itnyre                Aye  
Director Peters      Aye 
Director Vallejo                Aye 

 
 

7. WATER RESOURCES MANAGER REPORT: 
Steve Johnson, Joseph Montoya, and Steve Reich provide updates on the following grants/programs: Prop. 
1 Grant Status, Prop. 68 Grant Status, Recycled Water Program, Navy/COSO Royalty Fund 2021 
Project(s), GSP Planned Projects – Project No. 4 Shallow Well Impact Mitigation Program, GSP Planned 
Projects – Project No. 1 Surface Percolation Replenishment Update, and Introduction of Ordinance 01-21 
– Water Conservation (presentations made available on the IWVGA website).  
 
The Board hears public comment from Judie Decker, Don Decker, and Derek Hoffman. 

 
8. GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT: 

Carol Thomas-Keefer provides updates on the following: Monthly Financial Update, Report on IWVGA’s Water 
Marketer (Capitol Core Group), Severely Disadvantaged Communities (SDAC) Program, and Delinquent 
Accounts (documents made available on the IWVGA website). 

 



3 | P a g e  
IWVGA Board of Directors ‐ Meeting on May 12, 2021 
 
  

 
9. CLOSING COMMENTS: 

Vice Chair Rajtora questions some of the numbers shown in the Annual Report concerning the El Paso area. He 
further expresses desire to return to in person meetings, create a critical projects list, and employ an independent 
general counsel, and he shares concerns for a potential need for dust mitigation. 

   
10. DATE OF NEXT MEETING – June 9, 2021 

 
11. ADJOURN: 

Chairman Hayman adjourns the meeting at 12:42 p.m. on May 12, 2021. 
 
 
 

Respectfully submitted, 
 

April Keigwin 
Clerk of the Board 
Indian Wells Valley Groundwater Authority 





City of Ridgecrest
Attn: Alan Christensen
100 W. California Ave.
Ridgecrest, CA 93555

Professional Services through 4/30/2021

Project #: 2652 Indian Wells Valley Groundwater Authority

2652-45

05/28/21

Invoice Number:

Invoice Date:

Invoice

Water Resources Management
02.01 - POAM No. 15,16 Prop 1 Grant Administration

Professional Services ChargeBill RateBill Hours

Principal $460.002.00 $230.00
Associate I $115.001.00 $115.00
Associate III $525.005.00 $105.00

$1,100.00Professional Services Subtotal:

$1,100.00POAM No. 15,16 Prop 1 Grant Administration Subtotal:
37 - 2021 SDAC Program Support: Rebate Program

Professional Services ChargeBill RateBill Hours

Associate III $52.500.50 $105.00
$52.50Professional Services Subtotal:

$52.502021 SDAC Program Support: Rebate Program Subtotal:
38 - 2021 SDAC Program Support: Water Auditt, Leak Detection & Repair

Professional Services ChargeBill RateBill Hours

Associate III $52.500.50 $105.00
$52.50Professional Services Subtotal:

$52.502021 SDAC Program Support: Water Auditt, Leak Detection & Repair Subtotal:
39 - 2021 Pump Fee Support

Professional Services ChargeBill RateBill Hours

Supervisor I $300.001.50 $200.00
Senior I $160.001.00 $160.00
Associate I $172.501.50 $115.00

$632.50Professional Services Subtotal:

$632.502021 Pump Fee Support Subtotal:
40 - 2021 General Engineering

Professional Services ChargeBill RateBill Hours

Principal $805.003.50 $230.00
Supervisor I $2,350.0011.75 $200.00
Associate I $172.501.50 $115.00
Associate III $105.001.00 $105.00

$3,432.50Professional Services Subtotal:

$3,432.502021 General Engineering Subtotal:
41 - 2021 Production Reporting Support



Project #: 2652 2652-45Invoice No:

May 28, 2021

Page 2

41 - 2021 Production Reporting Support
Professional Services ChargeBill RateBill Hours

Principal $345.001.50 $230.00
Supervisor I $100.000.50 $200.00
Associate I $28.750.25 $115.00
Associate III $498.754.75 $105.00

$972.50Professional Services Subtotal:

$972.502021 Production Reporting Support Subtotal:
42 - TSS Coordination: Drilling Support

Professional Services ChargeBill RateBill Hours

Supervisor I $50.000.25 $200.00
Assistant I $23.750.25 $95.00

$73.75Professional Services Subtotal:
Reimbursables Charge

Laboratory / Testing $4,393.50
$4,393.50Reimbursables Subtotal:

$4,467.25TSS Coordination: Drilling Support Subtotal:
45 - 2021 Annual Report

Professional Services ChargeBill RateBill Hours

Principal $460.002.00 $230.00
Supervisor I $900.004.50 $200.00
Senior Associate $360.003.00 $120.00
GIS Specialist I $142.501.50 $95.00

$1,862.50Professional Services Subtotal:

$1,862.502021 Annual Report Subtotal:
46 - 2021 Data Management System Support

Professional Services ChargeBill RateBill Hours

Principal $172.500.75 $230.00
Supervisor I $100.000.50 $200.00
Associate I $1,322.5011.50 $115.00

$1,595.00Professional Services Subtotal:

$1,595.002021 Data Management System Support Subtotal:
47 - 2021 Allocation Plan: Allocation Process & Transient Pool Support

Professional Services ChargeBill RateBill Hours

Principal $920.004.00 $230.00
Associate III $341.253.25 $105.00

$1,261.25Professional Services Subtotal:

$1,261.252021 Allocation Plan: Allocation Process & Transient Pool Support Subtotal:
49 - 2021 Allocation Plan: Fallowing & Transient Pool Transfer Program

Reimbursables Charge

Equipment Purchase $2,172.17
$2,172.17Reimbursables Subtotal:

$2,172.172021 Allocation Plan: Fallowing & Transient Pool Transfer Program Subtotal:
51 - 2021 Meetings and Prep

Professional Services ChargeBill RateBill Hours

Principal $3,220.0014.00 $230.00



Project #: 2652 2652-45Invoice No:

May 28, 2021

Page 3

51 - 2021 Meetings and Prep
Professional Services ChargeBill RateBill Hours

Supervisor I $1,300.006.50 $200.00
Senior Associate $1,170.009.75 $120.00
Associate III $1,391.2513.25 $105.00

$7,081.25Professional Services Subtotal:
Reimbursables Charge

Reproduction (Color) $103.24
Reproduction $7.20

$110.44Reimbursables Subtotal:

$7,191.692021 Meetings and Prep Subtotal:
52 - 2021 Budget Support

Professional Services ChargeBill RateBill Hours

Supervisor I $50.000.25 $200.00
Senior Associate $180.001.50 $120.00

$230.00Professional Services Subtotal:

$230.002021 Budget Support Subtotal:
53 - 2021 General Project Management

Professional Services ChargeBill RateBill Hours

Supervisor I $100.000.50 $200.00
Senior Associate $300.002.50 $120.00
Associate III $262.502.50 $105.00

$662.50Professional Services Subtotal:

$662.502021 General Project Management Subtotal:
55 - 2021 Grant Review/Application

Professional Services ChargeBill RateBill Hours

Associate III $105.001.00 $105.00
$105.00Professional Services Subtotal:

$105.002021 Grant Review/Application Subtotal:
56 - 2021 Model Transfer and Upgrade

Professional Services ChargeBill RateBill Hours

Supervisor I $400.002.00 $200.00
$400.00Professional Services Subtotal:

$400.002021 Model Transfer and Upgrade Subtotal:
57 - Navy/Coso Royalty Fund: Develop FY22 Project & Secure Funding

Professional Services ChargeBill RateBill Hours

Principal $805.003.50 $230.00
$805.00Professional Services Subtotal:

$805.00Navy/Coso Royalty Fund: Develop FY22 Project & Secure Funding Subtotal:
58 - Navy/Coso Royalty Fund: 2021 Rose Valley MW Permitting, Bid Doc Support & Dri

Professional Services ChargeBill RateBill Hours

Principal $345.001.50 $230.00
Supervisor I $700.003.50 $200.00
Associate I $747.506.50 $115.00

$1,792.50Professional Services Subtotal:



Project #: 2652 2652-45Invoice No:

May 28, 2021

Page 4

$1,792.50Navy/Coso Royalty Fund: 2021 Rose Valley MW Permitting, Bid Doc Support & Dri
59 - 2021 Data Collection

Professional Services ChargeBill RateBill Hours

Supervisor I $2,500.0012.50 $200.00
Associate I $8,395.0073.00 $115.00
GIS Manager $86.250.75 $115.00
Assistant I $2,850.0030.00 $95.00

$13,831.25Professional Services Subtotal:
Reimbursables Charge

Car Rental $996.95
Field Supplies $25.43
Lodging $1,091.77
Meals $134.62

$2,248.77Reimbursables Subtotal:

$16,080.022021 Data Collection Subtotal:
60 - 2021 Imported Water: Negotiations and Coordination

Professional Services ChargeBill RateBill Hours

Principal $2,070.009.00 $230.00
$2,070.00Professional Services Subtotal:

$2,070.002021 Imported Water: Negotiations and Coordination Subtotal:
62 - 2021 Recycled Water

Professional Services ChargeBill RateBill Hours

Principal $2,415.0010.50 $230.00
Supervisor I $2,900.0014.50 $200.00
Senior Associate $60.000.50 $120.00
Associate III $3,911.2537.25 $105.00

$9,286.25Professional Services Subtotal:

$9,286.252021 Recycled Water Subtotal:
63 - 2021 Shallow Well Mitigation Program: Plan Development

Professional Services ChargeBill RateBill Hours

Principal $805.003.50 $230.00
Supervisor I $150.000.75 $200.00

$955.00Professional Services Subtotal:

$955.002021 Shallow Well Mitigation Program: Plan Development Subtotal:
64 - 2021 Shallow Well Mitigation Program: Outreach & Impacts Evaluation

Professional Services ChargeBill RateBill Hours

Principal $345.001.50 $230.00
Associate III $997.509.50 $105.00

$1,342.50Professional Services Subtotal:

$1,342.502021 Shallow Well Mitigation Program: Outreach & Impacts Evaluation Subtotal:
65 - Brackish Water Group Aquifer Performance Test

Professional Services ChargeBill RateBill Hours

Principal $460.002.00 $230.00
GIS Manager $57.500.50 $115.00
Assistant I $2,161.2522.75 $95.00

$2,678.75Professional Services Subtotal:



Project #: 2652 2652-45Invoice No:

May 28, 2021

Page 5

65 - Brackish Water Group Aquifer Performance Test
Reimbursables Charge

Car Rental $272.64
Meals $8.11

$280.75Reimbursables Subtotal:

$2,959.50Brackish Water Group Aquifer Performance Test Subtotal:
66 - 2021 Litigation Support – Searles Valley Minerals & Mojave Pistachios

Professional Services ChargeBill RateBill Hours

Principal $1,955.008.50 $230.00
$1,955.00Professional Services Subtotal:

$1,955.002021 Litigation Support – Searles Valley Minerals & Mojave Pistachios Subtotal:

Water Resources Management Subtotal: $63,435.63

$63,435.63*** Invoice Total ***





Invoice
Date

4/30/2021
Invoice #

12019

Bill To:
Indian Wells Valley Groundwater Authority
100 W California Ave
Ridgecrest, CA 93555

PO Box 1350
Carmel Valley, CA 93924

P.O. No. Due Date

5/30/2021

Inv Sent

5/12/2021

Total

Description AmountDate
Contract Services for April - please see attached 16,898.754/30/2021

$16,898.75



Month:  

Monthly
Advisor Name Reg Hrs Bill Rate Reg Hrs Bill Rate Total Billed
Carol Thomas-Keefer 14.50 125.00$  10.75 125.00$  3,156.25$   
April Keigwin 67.40 100.00$  62.70 100.00$  13,010.00$ 
Jefferson Kise 2.50 135.00$  2.00 135.00$  607.50$      
Sandra Strong 1.25 100.00$  0.00 -$        125.00$      

Totals 85.65 75.45 16,898.75$ 

Indian Wells Valley

April, 2021

Hours and Rates by Pay Period
1st -15th 16th - EOM

Indian Wells 5/13/2021





Capitol Core Group, Inc.
205 Cartwheel Bend (Operations Dept.)
Austin, TX  78738 US
949.274.9605
operations@capitolcore.com
www.capitolcore.com

BILL TO
Indian Wells Valley Groundwater 
Authority
500 West Ridgecrest Blvd.
Ridgecrest, California  93555
USA

INVOICE 2021-034

DATE 06/04/2021    TERMS Net 45

DUE DATE 07/19/2021

DATE ACCOUNT SUMMARY AMOUNT

05/03/2021 Balance Forward 11,787.50
Other payments and credits after 05/03/2021 through 06/03/2021 0.00

06/04/2021 Other invoices from this date 0.00
New charges (details below) 15,962.50
Total Amount Due 27,750.00

ACTIVITY HOURS RATE AMOUNT

Charges
Task 1 -- Secure Imported Water Supplies
Strategic Communications:Water Procurement Assistance
Water Agency Calls and Transfer Partner Update Calls (Various) [Tatum}

6 250.00 1,500.00

Strategic Communications:Water Procurement Assistance
Water Agency Calls (Various), Transfer Partner Updates calls, IWVGA 
internal calls re:water supplies, water memorandum {Simonetti}

15.50 225.00 3,487.50

Total Task 1 = $4,987.50
Task 2 -- Federal Funding Source
Government Relations:Federal Legislative Affairs
Federal Legislative Outreach:  Authorization Request WWTP/WRP 
(various); US Dept. of Commerce -- Economic Development Agency call; 
Memorandum Review on EDA Planning Grant {McKinney}

8 250.00 2,000.00

Government Relations:Federal Legislative Affairs
Rep. McCarthy Office and Rep. Obernolte office interaction and letter 
prep/internal meetings {McKinney

4 250.00 1,000.00

Government Relations:Federal Legislative Affairs
Federal Legislative Outreach: Authorization request WWTP/Water 
Recycling (various); Representative Obernolte letter and response; House 
Resources Committee staff {Simonetti}

13.50 225.00 3,037.50

Government Relations:Federal Legislative Affairs
Dept of Commerce -- Economic Development Agency preparation, call and 
follow-up {Simonetti}

2.50 225.00 562.50



ACTIVITY HOURS RATE AMOUNT

Government Relations:Federal Legislative Affairs
USEPA Region 9 Follow-up {Simonetti}

1.50 225.00 337.50

Government Relations:Federal Legislative Affairs
US Dept of Commerce -- EDA call and memorandum preparation {Olin}

3.50 175.00 612.50

Task 2 Total = $7,550.00
Task 4 -- State Funding Sources
Government Relations:California Legislative Affairs
Assm. Carbajal follow-up and budget request {McKinney}

1 250.00 250.00

Government Relations:California Legislative Affairs
State May Budget Revision analysis and strategy development {McKinney}

3 250.00 750.00

Government Relations:California Legislative Affairs
Assm. Carbajal follow-up and budget request; DWR Budget meeting 
{Simonetti}

2 225.00 450.00

Government Relations:California Legislative Affairs
State May Budget Revision, AB 252 strategy development, and Senator 
Atkins staff meeting {Simonetti}

3 225.00 675.00

Government Relations:California Legislative Affairs
State Budget Analysis, monitoring, AB 252 analysis and internal report 
{Gillis}

6 100.00 600.00

Total Task 4 = $2,725.00
Task 5 -- Board Meetings and Preparation
Administrative
Board Meeting and Preparation {Tatum}

1 250.00 250.00

Administrative
Board Meeting, Preparation and Monthly Reporting {Simonetti}

2 225.00 450.00

Total Task 5 = $700.00

Thank you for your business.  Please make checks payable to 
Capitol Core Group, Inc.

TOTAL OF NEW 
CHARGES 15,962.50

TOTAL DUE $27,750.00





Invoice
Date

5/18/2021

Invoice #

6744

Customer

Indian Wells Groundwater Authority
Attn: Accounts Payable
500 W. Ridgecrest Blvd.
Ridgecrest, CA 93555

Contract No.

02-19

Terms

Net 90

Due Date

8/16/2021

Phone #

(626) 335-7888

Fax #

(626) 628-0311

E-Mail

info@waterwise-consulting.com

Web Site

www.waterwise-consulting.com

Total

1751 S. Grand Ave.
Glendora, CA 91740

Item Description Amount

Rebate Administration Indian Wells Groundwater Authority
Water Conservation Rebate Program
Service Period: May 2021

Task: Monthly Administration - $5,000.00 x 0 = $0.00

Task: Website Development - $4,000.00 x 0 = $0.00

Task: Program Manager - $125.00 x 6 = $750.00

Task: Design, Marketing & Outreach - $80.00 x 0 = $0.00

Task: Customer Rebates - $0.00

TOTAL THIS INVOICE: $750.00

750.00

Please Make Check Payable To: WaterWise Consulting, Inc.
$750.00



Indian Wells Groundwater Authority
Water Conservation Rebate Program
Service Period: May 2021

Fixed Labor Cost Breakdown

Classification Staff Name(s) Service Date(s) Item Qty. Fixed Rate Total Billed Labor Summary
Monthly Administration 0 5,000.00$       -$       

-$      

Hourly Labor Cost Breakdown

Classification Staff Name Service Date(s) Qty. Hours Hourly Rate Total Billed Labor Summary
Program Manager Rebecca Shields Moose / Ajay Dhawan 5/7/21, 5/10/21 to 5/13/21 4 125.00$           500.00$       
Program Manager Rebecca Shields Moose / Ajay Dhawan 5/14/21 & 5/18/21 2 125.00$           250.00$       

6 750.00$       

Classification Staff Name Service Date(s) Qty. Hours Hourly Rate Total Billed Labor Summary
80.00$       -$      

0 -$      

Customer Rebates

Customer Name Address City State Zip Rebate Amount Notes

-$      

Invoice Total: 750.00$      

Final Report
Program Closeout





1 
 

       IWVGA ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICE 
 

Memorandum 
 
    
 
TO:  IWVGA Board Members DATE: June 9, 2021       
 
FROM: IWVGA Staff 
  
SUBJECT: Agenda Item No. 6 – Public Hearing and Possible Order on Mojave Pistachios (and 

Nugent Family Trust) For Failure to Properly Report and Pay Replenishment Fees 
 
DISCUSSION 

 
On August 21, 2020, pursuant to California Water Code Section 10730.2, this Board passed its 
Ordinance 03-20, thereby establishing a fee referred to as the “Replenishment Fee” in the amount 
of $2,130 per acre foot of water extracted from the Indian Wells Groundwater Basin (“the 
Basin”).  Two of the stated purposes for the fee were to fund the acquisition of water rights which 
could be the basis for bringing a firm source of supplemental water needed to create a state of 
sustainability in the Basin and to provide funds for mitigating damages to small, shallow wells 
located in the Basin susceptible to damage caused by continuing drops in Basin groundwater 
elevations.  
 
The Replenishment fee was set to first become applicable to water production from the Basin 
during January 2021 and the first report of production and payment of the fee were set to be due 
on February 15, 2021, roughly six months after actual passage of the ordinance.  
 
As of June 4, 2021, the Authority has not received any payment of the Replenishment Fee by 
Mojave Pistachios, LLC and/or the Nugent Family Trust (collectively referred to and known as 
Mojave Pistachios).  Written notice of that delinquency was been transmitted along with proper 
notice for this hearing.  In particular, that notice expressly provides that: 
 

If payment is not made prior to the hearing, the Board shall consider all legal 
options afforded by law including, but not limited to, an order directing Mojave 
Pistachios to cease production of all groundwater from the Indian Wells Valley 
Groundwater Basin. 

 
Some of the legal options afforded by law are found in California Water Code section 10730.6 
which, among other things, specifies enforcement approaches available to the Authority to deal 
with the delinquency including bringing suit to collect all fees, interest and penalties and seeking 
an attachment on the property to secure payment, administratively applying remedies such as liens 
or taking other actions available to collect fees, and/or ordering production of Basin water to cease 
and desist until all delinquent fees are paid.  Notably, subsection (f) expressly provides that “[t]he 
remedies specified in this section for collecting and enforcing fees are cumulative and may be 
pursued alternatively or may be used consecutively as determined by the governing body.” 
 
A public hearing is required to be conducted by the Authority Board prior to its approval and 
issuance of a cease and desist water production order. Accordingly, that hearing has been noticed 
as required by law and is set to occur at 10 a.m. on June 9, 2021.  



2 
 

 
Staff requests that the Board conduct the required public hearing and then direct the staff to pursue 
an appropriate authorized remedy or remedies for the delinquency. A cease and desist pumping 
order has been prepared and provided to the Board for consideration should the Board decide to 
utilize that option. 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
Staff recommends the Board adopt Resolution No __-21 - Approving and Adopting an Order 
Directing Mojave Pistachios’ to Pay All Outstanding Replenishment Fees Along with Interest or 
Cease Pumping. 

 





500 West Ridgecrest Boulevard 
Ridgecrest, CA 93555 

(760) 384-5511
www.IWVGA.org 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS           Carol Thomas-Keefer 
Scott Hayman, Chair 
Stan Rajtora, Vice-Chair 
Phillip Peters 
Matt Kingsley 
Paul Cook 
CDR Peter Benson, DoD Liaison 
Thomas Bickauskas 

General Manager 
Keith Lemieux 
Legal Counsel 

March 23, 2021 

RE: NOTICE OF UNREPORTED GROUNDWATER EXTRACTIONS 

Dear Mojave Pistachios, 

This letter serves as formal notice of your failure to provide the required written monthly report on your 
groundwater extractions as required by Indian Wells Valley Groundwater Authority (IWVGA) Ordinance.  The 
last received extraction report was provided in October of 2020. 

As you will recall, you also failed to provide these same monthly reports last year and it led to your 
removal from the two Committees. You were offered a chance to reapply for membership on the Committees 
but as of today you have not done so and you have once again failed to provide several months of written 
extraction reports.  Given that your claimed water pumping in any one year is roughly equivalent to the 
determined Sustainable Yield of the Basin, your written extraction reports are critically important information 
that must be obtained.  

Please be forewarned, the failure to abide by IWVGA Ordinances will trigger any and all available 
remedies authorized to the IWVGA by the State legislature.  These remedies include, but are not limited to, 
imposition of a civil penalty up to $1,000 plus an additional $100 for each day the violation continues.  This 
penalty becomes effective thirty (30) days after receipt of this Notice.  The full text of the law authorizing this 
penalty is provided below: 

Water Code 10732. Civil Penalties 
(2) A person who violates any rule, regulation, ordinance, or resolution adopted pursuant to Section
10725.2 shall be liable for a civil penalty not to exceed one thousand dollars ($1,000) plus one hundred
dollars ($100) for each additional day on which the violation continues if the person fails to comply
within 30 days after the local agency has notified the person of the violation.

Please immediately submit your monthly report of groundwater extractions to avoid the imposition of the civil 
penalty and further actions by the IWVGA. 

Respectfully,

Carol Thomas-Keefer 
IWVGA General Manager 





500 West Ridgecrest Boulevard 
Ridgecrest, CA 93555 

(760) 384-5511
www.IWVGA.org 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS         Carol Thomas-Keefer 
Scott Hayman, Chair 
Stan Rajtora, Vice-Chair 
Phillip Peters 
Matt Kingsley 
Paul Cook 
CDR Peter Benson, DoD Liaison 
Thomas Bickauskas 

General Manager 
Keith Lemieux 
Legal Counsel 

May 25, 2021 

Pursuant to Section 6 of Ordinance 03-20 of the Indian Wells Valley Groundwater Authority, you are hereby given notice 
by Certified Mail that the Authority shall conduct a hearing for the purpose of determining whether to order Mojave 
Pistachios to cease production of all groundwater from the Indian Wells Valley Groundwater Basin until all fee payments 
are made current. 

This hearing is scheduled to take place at 10:00 am on June 9th, 2021 at the Ridgecrest City Hall located at 100 W 
California Ave Ridgecrest CA 93555. Pursuant to Executive Order N-29-20 and given the current health concerns, this 
meeting is being conducted via WebEx Webinar. All persons having an interest in this matter may attend the hearing and 
give testimony and evidence which will be given due consideration by the Authority via Webinar. Information regarding 
access to the Webinar will be provided at the time the agenda is posted. 

This hearing may be avoided if all outstanding fees currently owed are made current along with interest at a rate of 1% per 
month on the delinquent amount as well as a 10% penalty on the delinquent amount prior to June 7th, 2021. If payment is 
not made prior to the hearing, the Board shall consider all legal options afforded by law including, but not limited to, an 
order directing Mojave Pistachios to cease production of all groundwater from the Indian Wells Valley Groundwater 
Basin. 

If you have any questions regarding any of the information contained in this notice, please contact James Markman at 
714-990-0901.

Carol Thomas-Keefer 
General Manager, IWVGA 





1 
 

  
  IWVGA ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICE 
 

STAFF REPORT 
    
 
TO:  IWVGA Board Members DATE:  June 9, 2021 
 
FROM: IWVGA Staff (Water Resources Manager) 
 Stephen B. Johnson, President 
 Stetson Engineers Inc.  
  
SUBJECT: Agenda Item No. 7 – Searles Valley Minerals Threat to Shutdown its Searles 

Domestic Water Company 
 
DISCUSSION 
 
IWVGA Staff was asked to investigate the claim/threat by Searles Valley Minerals (SVM) 
representatives at the Public Hearing of May 6, 2021 that if SVM must pay the Authority’s 
Replenishment Fee, SVM will discontinue operations, and SVM cannot, or will not, continue to 
operate its wholly owned Public Utilities Commission (PUC) regulated water company Searles 
Domestic Water Company (SDWC).  
 
It is of course impossible for anyone to “disprove” an abstract and unsupported verbal claim about 
a water system.  SVM was placed on notice at the May 6, 2021 Public Hearing that staff would be 
investigating their claims of impossibility.  To date, I have spoken with the responsible engineers 
at State Division of Drinking Water (DDW) (permitting agency for Searles Domestic Water 
System) and the PUC.  SVM has not provided any additional information to support its claim.  
Puzzled by SVM’s lack of response, we provided the attached letter on May 28, 2021 requesting 
a tour and certain items so that the claim could be investigated.  We received the attached reply 
from SVM on June 3, 2021 and as of the writing of this Staff Report we still have not received any 
responsive information from SVM.     
 
In my professional opinion, which has been developed over 40 years of professional engineering 
experience all in the area of water resources and water supply, the “claim” by SVM that they 
cannot separately serve the Domestic Water System does not make any sense and it would be 
directly counter to all water supply norms and best practices.  When questioned during the May 6, 
2021 Public Hearing, SVM provided no evidence or documentation to support its “claim.”  
However, if this “claim” is true, (1) in my professional opinion, this should be corrected 
immediately, to avoid a number of serious consequences (no domestic water supply, human health 
impacts, distribution system dewatering and public health impacts, no fire protection or emergency 
water supply, among other impacts), and (2) it is Staff’s understanding based on very recent 
discussions with the State Division of Drinking Water (DDW) (permitting agency for Searles 
Domestic Water System) that DDW is currently performing a “Sanitary Survey” evaluation of the 
SDWC system and they will investigate this SVM claim - and if found true – will require SVM to 
remedy this situation.  



2 
 

 
In summation, while at a micro level domestic water supply systems are somewhat complex, at a 
macro level they are fairly simple operations.  In this instance, water is taken from wells near the 
Ridgecrest City hall, transported through a pipeline into the Trona community where it is then used 
by both the SVM and SDWC.  Any argument that SVM must receive water in order for SDWC to 
receive water simply ignores that fact that any obstruction or diverson in the pipeline created by 
SVM can be bypassed.  Moreover, as discussed above if such an obstruction does in fact exist it 
should be immediately corrected. For SVM to serve its SDWC, it should be as simple as delivering 
water from SVM wells to the Arsenic treatment facility and to the SDWC distribution system, 
while “by-passing” laterals serving the non-potable industrial operations. 
 
Review of Documents, Information, and Regulatory Authority  
 
Staff has collected and reviewed the following documents: 
 

1. Agreement between SVM and SDWC for water supply. 
 
 This Agreement indicates SVM will supply SDWC with water that is “surplus” to 

SVM mining operations.  “Surplus” means after mining operations water supply 
needs are met.  If there are no mining operations, all water supplied to SDWC is 
still “surplus”.  
 

2. State DDW Amended Water Supply Permit, PUC Certificate of Necessity and 
Convenience (Permit to Operate) and other Related Documents. 
 
 DDW and PUC permits are issued to SVM, and SDWC is wholly owned by SVM.  

 
 DDW permit indicates SVM shall comply with the State’s Safe Drinking Water 

Act and Health and Safety Code. Any voluntary shutdown of the SDWC would 
be a violation of this permit requirement.  
 

 SVM was provided by the Authority with a series of operational questions and a 
request to tour and inspect the entire SVM water system.  To date, SVM has not 
responded with documentation to support its claim or provided the requested 
tour.  
  

 Very limited documents on SVM water system operations are publicly available.  
 

3. Regulatory Compliance – Discussions with State PUC and DDW.  
 
 Both PUC and DDW indicated SVM cannot legally stop supplying and serving 

the SDWC.  
 

 Based on information provided by the Authority, including legal documents and 
the SVM testimony at the Public Hearing, both PUC and DDW may take action 
against SVM to prevent any shutdown of SDWC.  PUC and DDW staff are 



3 
 

conferring with supervisors and legal counsel to determine their potential 
preemptive and actual enforcement actions for SVM to maintain water supply, and 
service to SDWC.  PUC representatives indicated SVM does not have the “option” 
to stop operating SDWC.  PUC and DDW representatives may participate in the 
continued Public Hearing on June 9, 2021. 
 

 PUC and DDW enforcement actions may include:  
a. The PUC may issue an “Order to Institute and Investigation “if it becomes 

clear that SVM may shutdown water supply and service to SDWC.  
b. The PUC may step-in and take over or resume water supply and service 

(receivership) for SDWC if SVM abandons SDWC. 
c. The PUC may order SVM, as holder of the PUC permit, to continue water 

supply and service to SDWC.  
d. The DDW is investigating SVM compliance with Cross-Connection 

Control and with Backflow Prevention.  These regulatory requirements 
essentially “isolate” the SDWC from SVM non-potable water system. 

e. The DDW may assign an “Administrator” to take-over SVM operations of 
the SDWC, including needed SVM water system facilities.  

 
 
CONCLUSIONS 
 
We have found no documents, facts or reasons why the cessation of water being delivered to the 
industrial operations would cause the cessation of water service to Trona residents.  
 
 
 
 





W A T E R  R E S O U R C E  P R O F E S S I O N A L S  
L I C E N S E D  B Y  T H E  S T A T E  B O A R D  O F  C O N S U M E R  A F F A I R S  

 

 
 
 

2652-66 Reply to: Covina 
  

May 28, 2021 
 
Mr. Burnell Blanchard 
Vice President-Operations 
Searles Valley Minerals 
13200 Main Street 
Trona, CA 93562 
 
  
  Subject: Public Hearing and Possible Order on  
    Searles Valley Minerals for Failure to Report and Pay   
    Replenishment Fees  
    (Does not include domestic water services provided through  
    Searles Domestic Water)  
 
Dear Mr. Blanchard: 
 
 Stetson Engineers Inc., as Water Resource Manager for the Indian Wells Valley 

Groundwater Authority (IWVGA), was asked to obtain information regarding claims 

made at the Public Hearing on May 6, 2021 that Searles Valley Minerals cannot provide 

water to Searles Domestic Water Company if water is not also supplied to, and used by, 

Searles Valley Mineral’s mineral facilities.  

 

 The following are requested to assist in evaluating your claim.  A failure to assist 

in this endeavor will be noted and made part of the upcoming hearing:  

 

1. Please provide any and all Searles Domestic Water Company standard operating 

procedures, operation manuals, guidelines, water system design documents, as-

builts, water system master plans, reports by/or to governmental or other 

regulatory agencies (DDW, PUC, SBCO, etc.), water system permits, and any 

other information on SVM water system design, construction, and operations that 



 
 
Mr. Blanchard 
May 28, 2021 
Page 2 
 

 

are needed to provide service to Searles Domestic Water Company by June 2, 

2001. 

 

2. Please provide any and all Searles Domestic Water Company System 

documents related to DDW, PUC, and SBCO, including but not limited to water 

supply assessments, engineers reports on water system performance, water 

system leaks, annual reports, and any water supply documents submitted to 

DDW, PUC, and SBCO by June 2, 2001.  

 

3. Please provide any and all reports regarding the contingency plans, risk and 

resilience assessments, operating manuals and similar documents which would 

show how Searles Domestic Water Company will be provided domestic water 

supplies in the event that Searles Valley Mineral ceases operations temporarily 

or permanently by June 2, 2001. 

 

4. Please provide us with a date and time, preferably between June 2, 2021 and 

June 4, 2021, to schedule an all-day inspection and visual tour of the water 

system that provides water to the Searles Domestic Water Company, from the 

wells used to pump ground water to the actual delivery to homes in the Trona 

community by the most knowledgeable operator of the system and or operator 

with the most advanced license. 

 
  Thank you for your assistance with this request.  
 
 
 Sincerely, 
 
  
 
 Stephen B. Johnson, P.E. 
 Stetson Engineers Inc. 
 
J:\2652 IWVGA\66 - 2021 Litigation Support\Searles Domestic Water Company\SVM_Blanchard_ltr_052821 PWH.doc 
 









500 West Ridgecrest Boulevard 
Ridgecrest, CA 93555 

(760) 384-5511
www.IWVGA.org 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS         Carol Thomas-Keefer 
Scott Hayman, Chair 
Stan Rajtora, Vice-Chair 
Phillip Peters 
Matt Kingsley 
Paul Cook 
CDR Peter Benson, DoD Liaison 
Thomas Bickauskas 

General Manager 
Keith Lemieux 
Legal Counsel 

March 23, 2021 

RE: NOTICE OF UNPAID GROUNDWATER REPLENISHMENT FEES 

Dear Searles Valley Minerals Inc., 

This letter serves as formal notice of unpaid, past-due groundwater Replenishment Fees, in violation of 
Ordinance 03-20.  Groundwater extractors are required to self-report their monthly pumping activities and must 
pay the Groundwater Replenishment Fee within 15 days of the end of the prior month. 

Our records indicate that you have not submitted your Replenishment Fees for the months of January 
and February 2021.  Please remit payment within five (5) days of this notice.  Failure to pay will trigger the 
available remedies authorized to the IWVGA by the State legislature.  These remedies include, but are not 
limited to, requiring your attendance at a hearing before the IWVGA Board, after which the Board may order 
you to cease extraction of groundwater until all delinquent fees are paid.  The full text of the laws authorizing 
these remedies is provided below:  

Water Code 10730.6. FEE COLLECTION AND ENFORCEMENT 

(a) A groundwater fee levied pursuant to this chapter shall be due and payable to the groundwater sustainability
agency by each owner or operator on a day established by the groundwater sustainability agency.

(b) If an owner or operator knowingly fails to pay a groundwater fee within 30 days of it becoming due, the
owner or operator shall be liable to the groundwater sustainability agency for interest at the rate of 1 percent
per month on the delinquent amount of the groundwater fee and a 10-percent penalty.

(c) The groundwater sustainability agency may bring a suit in the court having jurisdiction against any owner or
operator of a groundwater extraction facility within the area covered by the plan for the collection of any
delinquent groundwater fees, interest, or penalties imposed under this chapter. If the groundwater
sustainability agency seeks an attachment against the property of any named defendant in the suit, the
groundwater sustainability agency shall not be required to furnish a bond or other undertaking as provided in
Title 6.5 (commencing with Section 481.010) of Part 2 of the Code of Civil Procedure.

(d) In the alternative to bringing a suit pursuant to subdivision (e), a groundwater sustainability agency may
collect any delinquent groundwater charge and any civil penalties and interest on the delinquent groundwater
charge pursuant to the laws applicable to the local agency or, if a joint powers authority, to the entity
designated pursuant to Section 6509 of the Government Code. The collection shall be in the same manner as
it would be applicable to the collection of delinquent assessments, water charges, or tolls.

(e) As an additional remedy, a groundwater sustainability agency, after a public hearing, may order an owner or
operator to cease extraction of groundwater until all delinquent fees are paid. The groundwater sustainability
agency shall give notice to the owner or operator by certified mail not less than 15 days in advance of the
public hearing.



500 West Ridgecrest Boulevard 
Ridgecrest, CA 93555 

(760) 384-5511
www.IWVGA.org 

(f) The remedies specified in this section for collecting and enforcing fees are cumulative and may be pursued
alternatively or may be used consecutively as determined by the governing body.

Water Code 10732. CIVIL PENALTIES 

(2) A person who violates any rule, regulation, ordinance, or resolution adopted pursuant to Section 10725.2
shall be liable for a civil penalty not to exceed one thousand dollars ($1,000) plus one hundred dollars ($100)
for each additional day on which the violation continues if the person fails to comply within 30 days after the
local agency has notified the person of the violation.

Please remit payment of unpaid, past-due Groundwater Replenishment Fees within five (5) days of this Notice 
to continue your extractions and avoid a hearing before the Board.   

Respectfully, 

Carol Thomas-Keefer 
IWVGA General Manager 





 
500 West Ridgecrest Boulevard 

Ridgecrest, CA 93555 
(760) 384-5511 

www.IWVGA.org 

      
 

 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS                                                                                                                                 Carol Thomas-Keefer 
Scott Hayman, Chair 
Stan Rajtora, Vice-Chair 
Phillip Peters 
Matt Kingsley 
Paul Cook 
CDR Peter Benson, DoD Liaison  
Thomas Bickauskas 
 

General Manager 
Keith Lemieux 
Legal Counsel 

 
 

April 19, 2020 
 
 
Pursuant to Section 6 of Ordinance 03-20 of the Indian Wells Valley Groundwater Authority, you are hereby given notice 
by Certified Mail that the Authority shall conduct a hearing for the purpose of determining whether to order Searles 
Valley Minerals to cease production of all groundwater from the Indian Wells Valley Groundwater Basin until all fee 
payments are made current.  The production of 217 acre feet annually for the direct and sole use by Searles Domestic 
Water Co. for domestic purposes in the Trona community is not subject of this hearing and such production is not in 
jeopardy of cessation. 
  
This hearing is scheduled to take place at 10:00 am on May 6th, 2021 at the Ridgecrest City Hall located at 100 W 
California Ave Ridgecrest CA 93555. Pursuant to Executive Order N-29-20 and given the current health concerns, this 
meeting is being conducted via WebEx Webinar. All persons having an interest in this matter may attend the hearing and 
give testimony and evidence which will be given due consideration by the Authority via Webinar. Information regarding 
access to the Webinar will be provided at the time the agenda is posted. 
 
This hearing may be avoided if all outstanding fees currently owed are made current along with interest at a rate of 1% per 
month on the delinquent amount as well as a 10% penalty on the delinquent amount prior to May 3rd, 2021. If payment is 
not made prior to the hearing, the Board shall consider all legal options afforded by law including, but not limited to, an 
order directing Searles Valley Minerals to cease production of all groundwater from the Indian Wells Valley Groundwater 
Basin, excluding the production by the Searles Domestic Water Co. for its domestic purposes. 
  
If you have any questions regarding any of the information contained in this notice, please contact James Markman at 
714-990-0901. 
 
 
 
 
Carol Thomas-Keefer 
General Manager, IWVGA 





500 West Ridgecrest Boulevard 
Ridgecrest, CA 93555 

(760) 384-5511
www.IWVGA.org 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS         Carol Thomas-Keefer 
Scott Hayman, Chair 
Stan Rajtora, Vice-Chair 
Phillip Peters 
Matt Kingsley 
Paul Cook 
CDR Peter Benson, DoD Liaison 
Thomas Bickauskas 

General Manager 
Keith Lemieux 
Legal Counsel 

May 25, 2021

Pursuant to Section 6 of Ordinance 03-20 of the Indian Wells Valley Groundwater Authority, you are hereby given notice 
by Certified Mail that the Authority shall conduct a hearing for the purpose of determining whether to order Searles 
Valley Minerals to cease production of all groundwater from the Indian Wells Valley Groundwater Basin until all fee 
payments are made current.  The production of 217 acre feet annually for the direct and sole use by Searles Domestic 
Water Co. for domestic purposes in the Trona community is not subject of this hearing and such production is not in 
jeopardy of cessation. 

This hearing is scheduled to take place at 10:00 am on June 9, 2021 at the Ridgecrest City Hall located at 100 W 
California Ave Ridgecrest CA 93555. Pursuant to Executive Order N-29-20 and given the current health concerns, this 
meeting is being conducted via WebEx Webinar. All persons having an interest in this matter may attend the hearing and 
give testimony and evidence which will be given due consideration by the Authority via Webinar. Information regarding 
access to the Webinar will be provided at the time the agenda is posted. 

This hearing may be avoided if all outstanding fees currently owed are made current along with interest at a rate of 1% per 
month on the delinquent amount as well as a 10% penalty on the delinquent amount prior to June 7, 2021. If payment is 
not made prior to the hearing, the Board shall consider all legal options afforded by law including, but not limited to, an 
order directing Searles Valley Minerals to cease production of all groundwater from the Indian Wells Valley Groundwater 
Basin, excluding the production by the Searles Domestic Water Co. for its domestic purposes. 

If you have any questions regarding any of the information contained in this notice, please contact James Markman at 
714-990-0901.

Carol Thomas-Keefer 
General Manager, IWVGA 





August 1, 2019 IWVGA TAC Item 3c

1

IWVGA Board Meeting
June 9, 2021

Proposition 1 Status Update

• Invoice #8a
• Covers July through September 2020
• Total payment after retention: $137,765.72
• Status: Submitted November 30, 2020
• Progress Reports combined for Prop 1 & Prop 68 submitted November 30, 2020
• Revised invoice with requested payment after retention of $82,904.06 was submitted on May 14 (removed costs subject 

to CEQA concurrence, per DWR recommendation)

• Invoice #9a
• Covers October through December 2020
• Total payment after retention: $127,787.67
• Status: Submitted February 26, 2021
• Progress Reports combined for Prop 1 & Prop 68 submitted February 26, 2021
• Revised invoice with requested payment after retention of $51,679.74 was submitted on May 14 (removed costs subject 

to CEQA concurrence, per DWR recommendation)

• DWR CEQA Concurrence for Prop 1 monitoring wells, stream gages, and weather stations
• Environmental and site clearance documents were submitted on April 19, and are currently being reviewed by DWR.
• Certain documents still being gathered by the Navy
• Updated Environmental Information Form and letter certifying no legal challenges are currently being prepared.

AGENDA ITEM 9a
1

IWVGA Board Meeting
June 9, 2021

Proposition 1 Status Update (cont.)

• Invoice #10a
• Covers January through March 2021

• Total requested payment after retention: $77,758.34

• Status: Submitted May 28, 2021

• Progress Reports combined for Prop 1 & Prop 68 submitted May 28, 2021

AGENDA ITEM 9a
2



August 1, 2019 IWVGA TAC Item 3c

2

IWVGA Board Meeting
June 9, 2021

Proposition 68 Status Update

• Invoice # 9b
• Covers October through December 2020

• Total payment after retention: $4,348.28

• Submitted February 26, 2021

• Status: Payment received May 24

• Invoice # 10b
• Covers January through March 2021

• Total requested payment after retention: $2,865.04

• Status: Submitted May 28, 2021

AGENDA ITEM 9b
3

IWVGA Board Meeting
June 9, 2021

AGENDA ITEM 9c
4

Recycled Water Program Update

• Recycled Water Use Alternatives Analysis was authorized at January 2021 Board meeting

• Evaluate the potential uses of recycled water in the Basin and identify those uses that achieve the 
highest and most cost‐effective benefits towards sustainable Basin management and reduction of 
imported water requirements

• Alternatives Analysis Update

• Recycled Water Working Group consisting of technical staff from IWVGA (Stetson), City (MKN), and 
IWVWD (Krieger & Stewart)

• Joint scope of work released to Recycled Water Working Group June 8, to be released to TAC after 
Working Group review and revision

• Draft write‐up of City’s of existing WWTF facilities, existing recycled water uses, and City’s plans to 
upgrade and expand the WWTF currently being reviewed internally



August 1, 2019 IWVGA TAC Item 3c

3

IWVGA Board Meeting
June 9, 2021

AGENDA ITEM 9d
5

Navy/COSO Royalty Fund 2021 Project(s)

FY 2021 COSO Project Status

• All paperwork completed and submitted 

• BLM completing review of NEPA/SF 299 week of June 7th

• Submittal to Navy following BLM review

IWVGA Board Meeting
June 9, 2021

AGENDA ITEM 9d
6

Navy/COSO Royalty Fund 2021 Project(s)

FY 2022 COSO Project Status

• Scope of work developed for two‐year project discussed last month

• Waiting for FY 22 Energy Support Budget (ESB) guidance before submittal



August 1, 2019 IWVGA TAC Item 3c

4

IWVGA Board Meeting
June 9, 2021

• Shallow Well Mitigation 
Report Form adopted last 
month

• Draft Mitigation Program 
prepared 

• Currently in internal IWVGA 
staff review

• Draft to be brought to 
TAC/PAC for review after staff 
review  

• Draft Summary of Process

AGENDA ITEM 9e
7

GSP Planned Projects – Project No. 4 Shallow Well Impact Mitigation Program Update

Well Owner submits Shallow 
Well Mitigation Report Form 

to IWVGA.

IWVGA Staff acknolwedges 
receipt within 10 days and 
sends Report Form to the 

WRM.

The WRM prepares Shallow 
Well Impact Evaluation Report 
and provides to IWVGA Staff to 
Well Owner within 3 months. 
Report includes preliminary 
mitigation recommendations.  

The WRM concurrently 
evaluates other submissions 
within the same calendar year 

to determine regional 
mitigation response (if 

necessary). 

The WRM prepares the draft 
Impacted Shall Well Mitigation 
Priority List by April 1 of each 
year for submissions made in 
the previous calendar year. 

The Shallow Well Mitigation 
Committee reviews the draft 
Mitigation Priority List and 
submits the Final Mitigation 

Priority List to the Board at the 
June IWVGA Board Meeting.   

The IWVGA Board has a public 
hearing to consider adopting 
the Final IMpacted Shallow 
Well Mitigation Priority List. 

After adoption, mitigation 
projects are implemented.





Indian Wells Valley Groundwater Authority Profit and Loss Statement
Actual vs Budget

Cash basis

YEAR TO DATE: 1/1/21‐3/31/21

Actual FY Budget Actual FY Budget Actual FY Budget Actual FY Budget Actual FY Budget

REVENUE

Pumping Fee 288,128             1,959,673          314,926             8,356,306          21,303               69,381               624,357             10,385,360      

Allocation to Admin: Extraction Fee Revenue  911,050             ‐                     911,050            

Allocation to Admin: Replenishment Fee Revenue  910,401             ‐                     910,401            

Rose Valley Reimbursement by Navy 300,000             ‐                     300,000            

Prop 1 Grant ‐GSP Preparation @ $1,500,000 7,761                 324,494             7,761                 324,494            

Prop 1 Grant ‐SDAC Reimburse @ $646,000 389,051             ‐                     389,051            

Prop 68 283,918             ‐                     283,918            

IWVWD Credit @ $615,082.87 ‐                     ‐                    

TOTAL REVENUE ‐                     2,121,451          295,889             2,957,136          314,926             8,356,306          21,303               69,381               632,118             13,504,274      

EXPENSES

Beginning balance position 119,190             (156,525)            ‐                     (37,335)             

‐                     ‐                    

Contract Administration(RGS) 225,000             ‐                     225,000            

Insurance 10,000               ‐                     10,000              

Audit 7,000                 1,000                 1,000                 7,000                

Public Ed/Outreach 5,000                 ‐                     5,000                

Legal ‐ GSP Implementation 100,000             ‐                     100,000            

Legal ‐ Special Counsel 250,000             ‐                     250,000            

Meetings & Prep 12,000               ‐                     12,000              

General Engineering 50,000               ‐                     50,000              

Production Reporting Support 36,000               ‐                     36,000              

TSS Coordination: Drilling Support 30,000               ‐                     30,000              

TSS Coordination: Coordination/Application Supp 30,000               ‐                     30,000              

Coordination w/DWR on GSP Review 50,000               ‐                     50,000              

Annual Report 30,000               ‐                     30,000              

Data Management System 26,000               ‐                     26,000              

Allocation Plan for Sustainable Yield: ‐                     ‐                    

Allocation Plan for Sustainable Yield: Allocation Process and Pool 

Supp 30,000               ‐                     30,000              

Allocation Plan for Sustainable Yield: Rules/Regs on 

Pumping/restrictions 10,000               ‐                     10,000              

Replenishment Fee Transient Pool (Mitigation)GSP DevelopmentAdministration TOTAL



Indian Wells Valley Groundwater Authority Profit and Loss Statement
Actual vs Budget

Cash basis

Actual FY Budget Actual FY Budget Actual FY Budget Actual FY Budget Actual FY Budget

Replenishment Fee Transient Pool (Mitigation)GSP DevelopmentAdministration TOTAL

Allocation Plan for Sustainable Yield: Fallowing and Pool Xfer 

Program 25,000               ‐                     25,000              

Conservation Efforts 20,000               ‐                     20,000              

Meetings and Prep 120,000             ‐                     120,000            

Budget Support 5,000                 ‐                     5,000                

General Project Management 50,000               ‐                     50,000              

Stakeholder Coordination 10,000               ‐                     10,000              

Grant Application Prep 50,000               ‐                     50,000              

GA Model Transfer and Upgrade 50,000               ‐                     50,000              

Navy/COSO Royalty Fund Coord: Develop FY22 Project/Secure 

Funding 40,000               ‐                     40,000              

Navy/COSO Royalty Fund Coord: 2021 Rose Valley MW 

Permitting, Bid & Drilling 300,000             ‐                     300,000            

Navy/COSO Royalty Fund Coord: Stetson/DRI Storage Calc and 

Rpt Review 11,100               ‐                     11,100              

Data Collection 120,000             ‐                     120,000            

Reserve Requirements 255,315             ‐                     255,315            

City of Ridgecrest Reimbursement 300,000             ‐                     300,000            

County of Kern Repayment 500,000             ‐                     500,000            

SDAC 83,152               481,651             83,152               481,651            

Stetson 60,000               438,248             438,248             60,000              

‐SDAC support 12,000               ‐                     12,000              

‐Weather Station Maintenance 2,000                 ‐                     2,000                

‐Monitoring Well Maintenance 2,000                 ‐                     2,000                

‐Pump Fee Support 15,000               ‐                     15,000              

Outstanding Invoices 619,825             ‐                     619,825            

Transfer to Admin 911,050             ‐                     911,050            

Legal Services 10,000               ‐                     10,000              

Administration 15,000               ‐                     15,000              

Imported Water Supply Negotiations/Coordination 50,000               ‐                     50,000              

Imported Water Supply Engineering and Analysis 126,500             ‐                     126,500            

Optimize Use Of Recycled Water 250,000             ‐                     250,000            

Captal Core 57,125               175,000             57,125               175,000            

Transfer to Admin 910,401             ‐                     910,401            

Shallow Well Impacts Mitigation: Program Development 50,000               ‐                     50,000              

Shallow Well Impacts Mitigation: Outreach and Impact Eval 20,000               ‐                     20,000              

‐                     ‐                    



Indian Wells Valley Groundwater Authority Profit and Loss Statement
Actual vs Budget

Cash basis

Actual FY Budget Actual FY Budget Actual FY Budget Actual FY Budget Actual FY Budget

Replenishment Fee Transient Pool (Mitigation)GSP DevelopmentAdministration TOTAL

Expenses not aligned with budget expense items ‐                     ‐                    

Website Fees 266                    266                    ‐                    

Publishing 1,421                 1,421                 ‐                    

Well Monitoring 1,680                 1,680                 ‐                    

‐                     ‐                    

‐                     ‐                    

‐                     ‐                    

Other 100                    100                    ‐                    

TOTAL EXPENSES 100                    2,076,604          87,518               2,747,001          495,373             1,536,900          ‐                     70,000               582,992             6,430,505         

NET INCOME (LOSS) (100)                   44,847               208,370             210,135             (180,447)            6,819,406          21,303               (619)                   49,126               7,073,768         





���������	
����	��������� �������������������������� ���!�"#$�%�&'�(��� )�**�+,����--,��+��,���$,.��/���,0��-��11��� �,.������.2,���3���00���-4��+-�5��)��������+-�-����6� ,����,� ����7�����*�-���"#$�%�8���0��*�9,��.-�����:;<=��� )4���>��?@?A�BCDE=1<�� /��F�.-�GH0�-���������04��*�����3�?@?A��.-,5,-,����� � � � � � � � � � � � � ������*����I,� ������I,������5��JK�LJMNOPQ�LPRSTK�UMVJOS�WPR�JXONYNONSK�OZJO�[S�XP\MQSOSV�N]���3̂��_̀_a�b:cc�B1d=eCf=��%��I����5��0,�.4���0�,��H�,����������I����5���47�,--�0�-�����H��,.3g����-�0���h4��-��-���4��.�� ����,�����0��� �-,���*���.���,0���-,���,��-���?@?A�i9%%j�%-�-�,��H�,�-��-���i9%%����k4H�H��.����,��0���3�0�04��-��-���0���3��*�/���,0��-�8,0��T���5������740 �-j�l�4���%���0�+��5,.�������,--������,��%0���+�,-��m9g#%n�,�0,.�-�0�,���,0g��3�-��-����I�4�0���-�7���7���-��.��04.-����k4H�����-���l�4���0�*�����7,���4�-,��+�H-��7�����������4�-��*�-���0���3�,��/���,0��-�8,0��T��740 �-j�o��-���+���-���,0���%���0�+��5,.�������,--������,��)�.k�p��0�m9gp"n�,�0,.�-�0�-��-��,��.���,--���,���-,��� �,� �-��-�3�-�����k�4H�-��,��5���,����*�-���7,���,��)4�3�H�,���-��-����4�������.�����74-�-�����,����� 4����-���-��-�-�,�������5�-��I,�����HH���H�,���-��-����4�������.���j��_̀_a�:qrs�&Cteutv�w�Cte������x�0�����x4�0,� �oHH��-4�,-3�*���-�,��3���TK�9�*���������4�,-3�"�*���-�4.-4���/�� ����m9�"/n�,���5�,��7���*���5,�I,� j������,�k�,���������0��HH�,.�-,��������04��73�)4�3�A?-�j���,��3���TK�JMMQN.�-,���I,���7��F40 �0�0,**����-�3�-�������-�3���TK�JMMQNX��-�H���j�x���?@?A���,�,-��3�$��4��,��-���-�H�.�,-��,���*���.���,0���-,����*���9"�/��HH�,.�-,��j����0�-���,���-�,���-���o**,.���*�y�.���9�*���������4�,-3����H���-,���m-����0�,�,�-��-����*�-���9�"/�H�� ���n�I,���7��4�,� �-����,�,-��3�5��4�����k,� ��0�-���,��0�,��-���8����p���, ����-���0�����4���m8p%�n�����,��,���*����?@@zj���,.k������-��������I�-���,��-����-,����I�������k�0�04�,� �-�,��H��.���j��#�,�����,-����H��F�.-�,��.4����-�3�0����0�{KZPYSQ�RSJV|}�WPR�-���H4�H������*���k,� ���9�"/��HH�,.�-,����I���������,-��,� �-���H�� ������*�-���9�"/��HH�,.�-,����-�,��3������0�I,���7���05�.�-,� �*���*4�-����9�"/��4-���,~�-,����,��-�,��3���TK������JK�VSKXRN�SV�J�PYS������='�u=�����&=e=';f�s�<=t<u;f��;�<=�;<='��'=;<(=t<�sf;t<�&Cteutv�B�C'1=�������4 ��4-�-������-���I����-�I,-���4���� ,���-,5��0��� �-,������I���������*�I�*�0������ ��.,���-��0�-���,���H�-��-,���H��F�.-���, ,7,�,-3���0�H��F�.-�*4�0,� ���4�.��j�����-I��������-��-�I������.��-,�4,� �-����H������*-����4��0,�.4��,����-�,�����-�����̂�� g� ��������������������������������������̂�/47�,.�#��k����0�6.����,.�%��,�-��.��/�� �����



�� �������	
��������	
���
��������������������������� �!"����������#�����$�%&"%����'(� �"&��)*�����)��+,-,./0�1,2340/5367�8,�/.,�967356.372�:�;7<./45.=>5=.,�?300�/7-�@65,753/0�8/45,A/5,.�+=7-372��BC��)���()�&D��C����D��)��(E�(���F�""���G���)����D"(HI�J���C��&(�)��K��C��L� ���J G���)�����&���� ���G&E����E�!&����))�&��"�M�� ��)C�N�N()C� �D&����OP����""�&����D��)��(E�(���D(� ����F�""I�Q&()���� �#������$�N(F"�E��)��� �E��� ��C����C�R�S&(" �"�����&�)����C����D��)��(E�(���F�""�N��� �F�E���&�OTPU�F�""�&�����)N�� ���I�BC�R�E&���� ��C���G(EC�&D��C����D��)��(E�(���N�&V�E�)��C���W��)� ����L� ���N�&N&)� � &��&��D&""&S��C����� ���&��"� �D�����&��&D���D��)��(E�(���)(EC��)��&� )K�F�� ��)K�����)����GN�&%�G���)K���EI�'(��C��K��C�R�S�����&�()��)&G��&D��C��D(� )�D�&G�&�C���)��G("()�F�"")��C���C�%��)&�D����&��F����)N������ ��&���)(����C�����H�)������&�����)� ��&�N�R�D&���C�)�F�""I���X���� ��) �R�Y(���P� K��C��W��)� ����E�G��F�E��S��C���OU����""�&��N�&N&)�"��C���S&(" ���E"( ���""�Z��S��)N�� ����[�&��()�����C��N��&��)��G("()�G&���)��C���C�%���&��F����)N���\I�B&�N�R�D&����K�W��)� ����L� ���N�&N&)� ���G���G(G�U]̂ �E&�N&�������H�����I�$�N(F"�E��)�C�%���&���� �E��� �)(NN&���D&���C�)�N�&N&)�"K��� ��C��#������W��"��G���������"�)��S������ �E��� ��C���#��������G&E���)�G�R��&��F���F"���&�()���C��ZF( ������E&�E�"����&��_̀abcdde��������&�FRN�))��C��D�"�F()������ �%&���&�����FR�)�GN"��G�V&���RI��f%����D�#��������G&E���)�E&(" �()���C��F( ������E&�E�"����&��N�&E� (��K�G& ��������G&E���)�)(EC��)�#����&��Y&��g��EC���C�%���HN��))� � �)�NN�&%�"�S��C�()�����C���N�&E�))������I���J)�)(ECK��C��F�""��)�E(�����"R������C&" ����N�������(���"�"�� ��)C�N�G���)��� �E�)�&��&��C&S��C�R�S�����&�N�&E�� ��� �SC���S�""�F����E"( � �����C��F�""I�BC���NN�&N�����&�)�ERE"��C�)��")&�)"&S� I�X(��E&���E�)�&���C��JNN�&N�����&�)�!&GG�����)������� �E�������&�()��C�������)�"���"R�S��C�C&S�"�����C��F( ����N�&E�))��)��&�����C����C��!&����))�G��C��F��D&�E� ��&�N(�)(����!&����(����$�)&"(��&�I����S�""�E&����(���&�G&���&���C��N�&���))�&���C����D��)��(E�(���F�""�N����E("��"R���"��� ��&��C��S�����N�&%�)�&�)��� �S�""����N��C��L&�� ��� �)��DD��NN��)� �&����R���E�))��R��E��&�)I���h5/5,�@.62./i4�8,�/.,�967356.372�:�h5/5,�;7<./45.=>5=.,�?=-2,5�137,�;5,i4��J)�N����&D��C��JG���E���$�)E(��W"���JE��[�C��"�)��D� ���"��E&�&G�E�)��G("()�N"��\K��C��#�����&D�!�"�D&�������E��%� ��NN�&H�G���"R�OPT�F�""�&����� ���E���� �D�&G��C��D� ���"��&%���G���I�BC�)�D� ���"��))�)���E���)�S�""��)��C��C��C����C���N�&V�E�� ���H���E��N�)�C�"N� ��C��#������&�)S��EC�D�&G�����)��G��� �O]j�F�""�&��)C&��D�""��&�����)��G��� �Ok]�F�""�&��F( ����)(�N"()I�J)�N����&D��C�)�F( ����)(�N"()K��C��l&%���&���� �#������W�&�B�G�B&���J����)�C�%��N�&N&)� �G&����C���OU�F�""�&�����)N�� ����&��S�������"��� �N�&V�E�)I�W"��)��)����C��"����C����D&����D(""�&%��%��S�&D��C��F( ����N�&N&)�"I�XD�)N�E�D�E�N&������"�������)���&��C��m�nlJ������C��D&""&S����E����&���)��� �� O]oo�G�""�&���&��C����N���G����&D�!&�)��%���&��D&��G("���F���D���"�� ���N(�N&)����[)��� ����"� � �)E())�&��F�"&S�&���C�)����G\��� Opoo�G�""�&���&��C����N���G����&D�������$�)&(�E�)�D&��#lgJ��GN"�G������&���� OU]o�G�""�&��D&��S�������ERE"������ ���&(� S�����E"���(N�N�&V�E�)��� OU]o�G�""�&���&��))�)��)G�""�S�����)R)��G)�[�C&)���C���)��%��U]�PKqqq�E&���E��&�)\�S��C� �&(�C��E&�������ER�N"��������



����������	�
����������������������������������������������������������������� ������������������!"��#�$�%&�'�%�����������������������!�������������������!"���������������������������"���%��������!�������������������()(*������#������������������������������!�������������%���������������������������������!���!���� !���%�������������������#�+����������������%���������������!���!�����������,#�#�-./'�0�������/����!�'������&�����1���������%��������&��������������������������������������������!�������&����!����������������#���2����������������'�������������������������������������3���*4��#�+��������'�%�����!�������������%������"����%�������������!������&���������������������������!���!�������������5�����������������������������5������������������#��67879�:;<=;8>?�@9�8;9�A<BC7<;CB=�D�EF�GHG��+��%�����������&'�����������������������������������������������!��������%�����%�������������!������� !��#�I���������������������������������������%��������-����������������&����������������������������!������������#���������������������������!�����������������������������!�%�������������+J�(4('�%��!����������������������%������K�����L�����M���� !���������%�����������������������!������������#�+����"�����������������#�N�����%�������!��'�!�������������!������!�����!������������!�!����&������������!����������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������#�O��������������������������'�KPQRS�TUVWTVXYZR[M�\UQRY�]XR̂UT_ZR[�VTÛZXWỲa�ZTTZ[Q_US�Q[TZ]Ẁ_WTQ̀�̀QRS�_X�RUb�WYUY������������������������%�����������,�!�����*((c4#(,11d��,*1�/����������������������#�,(1���������������������������#�,e1�/�������������������#�,f1������������!����%������L���������!���������#�,41�-���������������������������!�&��!����#�,g1��%��!�����������������������!�����������������#�,h1������������"�����!����������!�����������#��+������������%�����������������'�������������������������+������������hcL)�&�����������%������������������������#�.�%����!���������������������������i����������������%������������������������������#�.�%�������"������������������!"��������!�������������J����j������%������������������������������2.kN+����������������������������������#��67879�:;<=;8>?�@9�8;9�A<BC7<;CB=�D�:;<lm�n�o;8B7�A<BC9?�����������!�O����-���%��������������!�����������������p�������O������-��'�%��!��������q��������r�"�����������3��5����/�&�#�.�������/�&���������������������������q��������r�"�����������O�����Ls���������,�������������� !���������/�&�1'��������������������!�O������������������p�������q��������r�"����������������������!����������L���%�%�����������!�����%�����!!��������()*h����()*t#������� !��%�������&�!��������!�������������������%�����&���������������!�O����������������������p�������q��������r�"#������� !�������������!�&��u*h*������������v���#�*����������������������������.���������������,�.�1#��



������������	
�
������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������	������������������������������������������������������������������ ������������������������������������������������������������!���������������������������"���������������������������������������������#������!���$��%����&�"�����������������#������������#��"��'��������������������������������������()*(�()+�,-./+0(�1233�0-+*(+�45+1�1*(+-6�*7.8+�*59�7+:.59�1)*(�;+;7+-�*<+502+=�*3-+*9:�-+0+28+>�?=�=@0)A�()+��������������������������������������������������������������������������������������"������	
�
�������� �����������B������������� �����������������������������������������������������������'���C��������B��#��������������������������������������������������'�������������������������D��������������������#�E������������F�
��G����������������������������������������������������������������"��������������������������#�$�����#�
���F��H�� '� �������������������#�����#�'� I�"����������"����������������������������#�������������"����'� I�"���������������������������JK�����������'��������������������������������������������'� B��������������������������������������������� ���������������������������������������������������������%����������������������������������������������#��������#��������������������������������������������#���"����������������������� ��������"����� ������������C���������������������L��������������������������DM��������������������#������#����������������������������������LM�����������������������%����������������������������������������������������������������������������NOPQR�STOUVUOUQW�UX�YZ[��G�������������������������������������"����������������������������\�#�L����������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������]�����������D�������#�� ��������"������������������������$���������̂�"#�������������������������������G_�����������������������������������������������������������������������������������!�����#�����"����#�%����������������������������������������̀F̀'J�a'J�bJ���





 

 
100 West California Avenue 

Ridgecrest, CA 93555 
(805)764-5452 

www.IWVGA.org 

      
 

 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS                                                                                                                                 Carol Thomas-Keefer 
Scott Hayman, Chair 
Stan Rajtora, Vice-Chair 
Phillip Peters 
Matt Kingsley 
Paul Cook 
CDR Peter Benson, DoD Liaison  
Thomas Bickauskas 
 

General Manager 
Keith Lemieux 
Legal Counsel 

 
 

DATE 
RE: Account Status 
 
Water System 
Mailing Address 
City, State, Zip 
 
 
 On June 21, 2018, the Indian Wells Valley Groundwater Authority (IWVGA) Board of Directors set the 
original Groundwater Extraction Fee at $30.00 per acre foot (A/F) to finance the development and adoption of 
the Groundwater Sustainability Plan. Ordinance No. 02-18 - Establishing Groundwater Extraction Fees and the 
Rules, Regulations and Procedures for their Imposition was subsequently adopted on July 19, 2018 and the fee 
became effective September 1, 2018. Ordinance No. 02-18 was later amended via Ordinance No. 02-20, 
adopting an increase to the fee from $30.00 per A/F to $105.00 per A/F on July 16, 2020 with the fee increase 
taking effect on September 1, 2020. 
 
Since that time, your account with IWVGA has become delinquent. To avoid additional fees and penalties, 
please contact April Keigwin, Clerk of the Board via email at akeigwin@rgs.ca.gov or by phone (805) 764-
5452 to discuss the information needed to bring the account current. 
 
 
Thank you, 
 
 
April Keigwin 
Clerk of the Board 
Indian Wells Valley Groundwater Authority 
 
  




	Page Left Blank
	IWVGA Minutes 051221
	Wednesday, May 12, 2021; 10:00 a.m.
	1. CALL TO ORDER:
	2. PUBLIC COMMENT ON CLOSED SESSION:
	None.
	4. OPEN SESSION:
	Meeting reconvenes into Open Session at 11:12 a.m.
	5. PUBLIC COMMENT:
	The Board hears public comment from Don Decker and Judie Decker.
	6. CONSENT AGENDA:
	7. WATER RESOURCES MANAGER REPORT:
	Steve Johnson, Joseph Montoya, and Steve Reich provide updates on the following grants/programs: Prop. 1 Grant Status, Prop. 68 Grant Status, Recycled Water Program, Navy/COSO Royalty Fund 2021 Project(s), GSP Planned Projects – Project No. 4 Shallow ...
	The Board hears public comment from Judie Decker, Don Decker, and Derek Hoffman.
	8. GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT:
	Carol Thomas-Keefer provides updates on the following: Monthly Financial Update, Report on IWVGA’s Water Marketer (Capitol Core Group), Severely Disadvantaged Communities (SDAC) Program, and Delinquent Accounts (documents made available on the IWVGA w...
	9. CLOSING COMMENTS:
	Vice Chair Rajtora questions some of the numbers shown in the Annual Report concerning the El Paso area. He further expresses desire to return to in person meetings, create a critical projects list, and employ an independent general counsel, and he sh...

	Invoice Board Packet
	Page Left Blank
	Invoice - Stetson
	Stetson Invoice #2652-45

	Page Left Blank
	Invoice - RGS
	Page Left Blank
	Invoice - CCG
	Page Left Blank
	Invoice - WaterWise
	Indian Wells Task Breakdown_May 2021.pdf
	Sheet1


	Page Left Blank

	Staff Report MP order
	IWVGA Administrative Office
	Memorandum


	Page Left Blank
	MP Delinquent Letter
	Page Left Blank
	Notice of Public Hearing MP
	Page Left Blank
	STAFF REPORT_SVM_ThreattoShutdown_052721_ ALK (003)_SBJ-3
	IWVGA Administrative Office
	STAFF REPORT


	Page Left Blank
	Stetson Letter SVM_Blanchard_052821 PWH-c1
	Page Left Blank
	SVM Response to Steve Johnson Letter of May 28, 2021
	Page Left Blank
	SVM Delinquent Letter
	Page Left Blank
	Notice of Public Hearing SVM
	Page Left Blank
	Notice of Public Hearing 060921 SVM
	Page Left Blank
	WRM Presentations
	Page Left Blank
	CCG Update
	Page Left Blank



